
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, March 11, 2014                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services and Planning Commission applicants beginning at 5:20 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
• Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2014 (Ed White) 
• Recognition of Finance Staff for CAFR (Council) 
• Recognize Citizen for Lifesaving Action (Bri Webb) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 11, 2014 Special Study Session (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Contract with SBS Legal Services for City Attorney Services (Matheson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Authorize Fund Transfer and Approve Use of Funds for Covington Days Staffing (Matheson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 11, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  FEBRUARY 11, 2014 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

STUDY SESSION MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the February 11, 2014 City Council Special 
Study Session Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 25



Unapproved Draft – February 11, 2014 Special Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 11, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Study Session Minutes 

Tuesday, February 11, 2014 
 
The Special Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st 
Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, February 11, 2014, at 6:15 p.m., with Mayor 
Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Jeff Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance 
Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; and 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Inland Group Development Agreement. 
 
Principal Planner Salina Lyons gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Lyons and Mr. Hart provided 
responses. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Senior Joan Michaud     Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

2 of 25



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 11, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #30720-30780, Including Vendor ACH Payments, in the 
Amount of $306,830.37, Dated February 18, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1002118277-1002118286 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$160,525.69, Dated February 28, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #30720-30780, Including 
Vendor ACH Payments, in the Amount of $306,830.37, Dated February 
18, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002118277-1002118286 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $160,525.69, 
Dated February 28, 2014. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 of 25



4 of 25



5 of 25



6 of 25



7 of 25



8 of 25



9 of 25



10 of 25



11 of 25



12 of 25



13 of 25



14 of 25



15 of 25



16 of 25



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: March 11, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH SBS 

LEGAL SERVICES, PLLC FOR 2014 CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed contract for City Attorney Services. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The city contracts with SBS Legal Services, PLLC, for City Attorney services.  The current 
contract expires on March 25, 2014.  The proposed contract reflects the increased hours 
approved with the 2014 budget. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not approve the contract and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance             Resolution      X    Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ seconds 
to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with SBS Legal Services, 
PLLC for 2014 City Attorney services. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 

17 of 25



 
 Page 1 of 3 

Contract No. __________ 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES  

 
 This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of  Covington, Washington (the “City"), 
and SBS Legal Services, PLLC, (the “Contractor”).    
 
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1. Scope and Schedule of Services to be Performed by Contractor.  The Contractor shall 
provide City Attorney services to the City and Sara B. Springer, a member attorney of the Contractor, 
shall serve as the City Attorney, providing the traditional scope of attorney services. The Contractor 
shall also be responsible for providing an equally qualified coverage attorney, when necessary. In 
performing such services, the Contractor shall at all times faithfully, and to the best of its ability and 
experience, perform all of the duties that are required of it pursuant to the express terms of this 
Agreement, the rules of professional responsibility, and the direction of city management.  
 2. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
  a. Compensation.  The City shall pay the Contractor a flat monthly fee of $5,0006,450.00 for 
legal services. The flat monthly fee is based upon the Contractor providing up to thirtyforty-five (435) 
hours of attorney time each month.  Any legal services performed above thirtyforty-five (435) hours in 
a given month shall be billed to the tenth (1/10) of the hour at the regular hourly rate of $145.00.  
Should the Contractor perform less than thirty forty (430) hours of legal services in a given month, the 
Contractor shall apply a pro-rated credit, calculated to the tenth(1/10) of the hour at the regular hourly 
rate of $145.00, to the flat fee owed by the City to the Contractor. Any legal services provided by a 
coverage attorney shall be included within the above compensation provisions.  
  b. Travel. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for travel time to and from 
the City. Any other travel by the Contractor on behalf of the City shall be billed at to the tenth (1/10) of 
the hour at 50% of the regular hourly rate of the Contractor.  
  c. Miscellaneous Expenses. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for 
telephone, photocopy, fax, and mileage expenses incurred in the performance of its duties; provided, 
however, that the City shall make a reasonable accommodation to reimburse the Contractor for unusual 
photocopy and fax costs, if any, that may arise in the course of litigation to which the City is a party or 
other extraordinary projects. In all events, the City shall reimburse the Contractor for legal messenger 
service expenses, court filing fees, transcripts, and other similar expenses advanced on the City’s 
behalf.  
  d. Payment. The Contractor shall submit monthly payment invoices to the City after such 
services have been performed. The City shall pay the full amount of the invoice within thirty (30) days 
of receipt, unless there is a dispute. In the event of a dispute, the City shall pay any amount not in 
dispute and the parties shall meet to resolve any differences. If the parties are unable to resolve any 
such differences, the parties shall submit the disputed amount to the Fee Arbitration Board of the State 
of Washington Bar Association for arbitration and prompt resolution. The parties agree to be bound by 
the results of such arbitration. In the event of non-payment following arbitration, the City shall pay the 
Contractor the costs of collecting the debt, including court costs and fees, and reasonable attorneys 
fees. 
 3. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of 
twelve (12) months, commencing on the date executed by the parties below unless sooner terminated 
under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 4. Independent Contractor.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
utilize only attorneys licensed by the State of Washington and in good standing with the Washington 
State Bar Association. The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is an independent 
contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the parties 

ATTACHMENT 1

18 of 25



 
 Page 2 of 3 

hereto.  Neither the Contractor nor any employee of the Contractor shall be entitled to any benefits 
accorded City employees by virtue of the services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not 
be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or 
contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer 
with respect to the Contractor, or any employee of the Contractor. 
 The parties acknowledge that the Contractor will provide work and services for other clients in its 
independent law practice. The Contractor agrees not to perform such services for other clients where a 
conflict of interest or ethical violation as defined in the Rules of Professional Conduct for attorneys 
exists. 
 5. Indemnification.  The Contractor releases and shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all claims, demands, 
losses, actions and liabilities (including costs and all attorney’s fees) arising from the negligent and 
intentionally wrongful acts or omissions of the Contractor in the performance of legal services under 
this Agreement, or by the Contractor’s breach of this Agreement. To the maximum extent permitted by 
applicable law, this indemnification provision shall apply. However, this shall not require the 
Contractor to indemnify the City against any liability for damages arising out of bodily injury or 
property damages caused by or resulting from negligence of the City.  Further, the City shall protect, 
defend and indemnify and save harmless the Contractor, its attorneys and other employees from all 
costs, claims, judgments or damages arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of the City, its 
officers, employees or volunteers or due to the City’s breach of this Agreement. 
 6. Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain in full force throughout the duration of 
the Agreement professional liability insurance including Errors and Omissions as appropriate to the 
services performed and shall be written on a claims made form basis with limits of in no case less than 
$500,000.00 per occurrence.  Cancellation of the required insurance shall automatically result in 
termination of this Agreement. A declaration of professional liability insurance as required above shall 
be delivered to the City within fifteen (15) days of execution of this Agreement. 
 7. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
  a. The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended and services performed in the performance of this Agreement and other such 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. 
  b. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW 
Chapter 40.14 and by the City.  
 8. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause by 
providing a thirty (30) day written notice of termination to the other party.  
 9. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Contractor to be provided under 
this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 
 10. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties 
hereto and no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, 
shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Either Party may request changes in the 
agreement.  Proposed changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written 
amendments to this Agreement. 
 11. Notices.  Notices to the City of Covington shall be sent to the following address: 
   City Clerk, City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st St, Suite 100 
   Covington, Washington 98042 
  Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the address provided by the Contractor upon the 
signature line below. 

19 of 25



 
 Page 3 of 3 

 12.   Assignment.  Neither the Contractor nor the City shall have the right to transfer or assign, in 
whole or in part, any or all of its obligations and rights hereunder without the prior written consent of 
the other party.  
 13. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or 
other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand 
and agree that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorney's fees and costs of suit. 
 
 DATED this ___11____ day of ____March_______________, 2014. 
 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONTRACTOR:  SBS Legal Services, PLLC  
 
By:  By:  
 
Title:  ___City Manager_________________   
  Title:  Owner/Attorney  
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
  Printed Name: Sara Springer  
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk  Address:  1340 N. 79th Street, #301  
   
                   Seattle WA  98103  
   
  Date approved by City Council: March 11, 2014 
          (If Applicable) 

20 of 25



 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 11, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  BRAND LAUNCH, STAFFING AND FUNDING 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager  
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. none 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City embarked on a branding project led by the Covington Economic Development Council 
(CEDC) in 2012. The project will culminate with a brand launch at the 2014 Covington Days 
Festival. It is very important to CEDC that the brand be launched at Covington Days because the 
timing of the brand launch is essential to the success of the brand.  
 
The city assumed management of the Covington Days Festival in March 2013 and executed the 
first city-run festival on July 20-21, 2013. The event was a great success and planning for the 
2014 festival has already begun. The 2014 festival will be held on July 19-20 in a new location, 
on the grounds of the newest Valley Medical Center facility in Covington.  
 
The brand launch and festival are being planned simultaneously and each takes considerable 
amount of dedicated staff time and funding. Current staffing levels do not allow both projects to 
receive enough dedicated staff time that they need to be successful.    
 
Staff considered the possibility of hiring an outside consultant to coordinate and complete the 
branding project. However, fees for this type of project consultant would be high and it would 
take even more staff time to oversee and manage a consultant and contract. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the transfer of $5,000 from the General Fund 
to the Parks Fund to increase the hours of the Recreation Assistant. The Recreation Assistant 
would utilize the additional hours to assume some of the Covington Days planning 
responsibilities. This would free up the necessary time for the Communications and Marketing 
Manager to dedicate to the brand launch.   
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the use of an additional $5,000 from the 
General Fund to execute the brand launch and complete the brand project. These funds would be 
used for advertising, signage, supplies and materials for the launch event, branded collateral, 
promotional marketing items, graphic design, and other necessities. 
 
 
 
 

21 of 25



ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Consider hiring an outside consultant to complete the branding project. 
2. Consider delaying the brand launch until Covington Days 2015. 
3. Provide alternate direction to staff. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $10,000 from the General Fund fund balance. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution      X    Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the use of $5,000 from the General Fund to execute the 
brand launch and to authorize the transfer of $5,000 from the General Fund 
to the Parks Fund to increase the Recreation Assistant’s hours to help plan 
Covington Days.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director 

22 of 25



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: March 11, 2014  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

5:20 p.m., Tuesday, March 25, 2014 Special Meeting for 
Commission Interviews 

 
7:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 25, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 
 

 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23 of 25



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, March 25, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services & Planning Commission applicants beginning at 5:20 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• International Student Exchange Day Proclamation (Kentlake and Kentwood High Schools) 
 
RECEPTION TO WELCOME EXCHANGE STUDENTS AND TEACHERS 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 25, 2014 Study Session; February 25, 2014 Regular Meeting; and 

March 11, 2014 Special & Regular Meetings (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Consider Amendment to Contract for Covington Community Park Maintenance (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  March 13 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  March 13 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  March 19 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  March 6 and March 20 meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  February 27 meeting. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss Covington Community Park Phase II 50% Design Alternatives (Feser) 
3. Present Park Impact Fees Study (Feser) 
4. Present and Discuss Parks CIP/CFP (Feser) 
5. Approve School Resource Officer Agreement (Klason) 
6. Presentation of 2013 Year End Financials (Hendrickson) 

Draft  

as of 
03/06/2014 

 

24 of 25

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 
 
 

25 of 25


	03-11-2014 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 11, 2014                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	 Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn
	 Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2014 (Ed White)
	 Recognition of Finance Staff for CAFR (Council)
	 Recognize Citizen for Lifesaving Action (Bri Webb)

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 03-11-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 02.11.2014 Special Meetng for Study Session Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 03-11-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 SBS Contract_3-11-14 with additional hours
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 03-11-14 Covington Days and Branding Funds
	Agenda Item 1

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	03-25-2014 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 25, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 03-11-14 City Attorney 2014 contract Blue Sheet with additional hours.pdf
	Consent Agenda Item C-3




